

CONSTITUTION
OF
GROUP NORTH HISTORICAL WARGAMES SOCIETY

RULE	SUBJECT	PAGE
1.	Name of the society	2
2.	Aims of the Society	2
3.	Politics	2
4.	Membership of the Society	3
5.	Subscriptions for membership	4
6.	Management of the Society	5
7.	Officers of the Society	6
	President	6
	Vice President	6
	Secretary	6
	Treasurer	6
	Committee Members	7
8	Election of Officers of Management Committee	8
9.	Meetings of the Society	9
10.	Duties and privileges of members	10
11.	Voting and Presentation of Business at meetings	11
12.	Dissolution of Society	12
13	Changes to the Constitution	13
14	Visitors	13
	By - Laws	15

1. NAME OF THE SOCIETY:

- 1.1 The name of the society shall be "Group North Historical Wargames Society", herein after called the Society.

2. AIMS OF THE SOCIETY:

- 2.1 To provide a convivial atmosphere to play wargames for those interested in figure, board and computer based wargaming of all periods and genre.
- 2.2 To advance the avocation of Historical Wargaming in the State of South Australia by means of research, competition, exchange of information, promulgation of rules, systems and training of umpires.
- 2.3 To foster relations between all creditable military historians and wargamers, by social activities.
- 2.4 To widen public awareness of historical military heritage by presenting displays, publishing reports and manuscripts of military history and actively engaging in the presentation of historical military structures and relics, and to support any society and individual properly engaged in similar endeavours.
- 2.5 To acquire monies and properties, real and otherwise, that these aims may be put into full and permanent effect.

3. POLITICS:

- 3.1 The society is strictly non-political and does not involve itself in current military politics.
- 3.2 Where it is necessary to discuss, debate or engage publicly in the topic of political Military history or any period what so ever, the policy of the society, shall be that of the Australian government of the day, or if this is not practical or applicable that of the victorious protagonists.
- 3.3 The society disassociates itself from societies, several and singular who align themselves with political parties or associations, or who make public comment upon political topics or whom, by reputation are considered to be politically orientated.
- 3.4 This constitution and the bylaws of the society in no way restrict the individual member in his political beliefs and it must be clearly understood that public comment by any member shall in no way be connected with or reflected by the society, and any such connection, stated or implied will be rejected by the society, by the disassociation of itself from that person.

4. MEMBERSHIP OF THE SOCIETY:

- 4.1 Membership of the society shall be open to all persons eighteen (18) or more years of age who are actively interested and engaged in historical military research, wargaming and suitably related subjects and are of proper character.
- 4.2 Application and Granting of Membership
- 4.2.1 Granting of membership is vested in the Committee. All outstanding applications for membership are to be considered at the next Committee meeting following the acceptance of the Application for Membership.
- 4.2.2 Applications for membership are to be considered after acceptance of a nomination sponsored by two (2) financial members of the Society and upon receipt of the current subscription.
- 4.2.3 During the period between application for membership and approval of such by the Committee the applicant exercises all rights and privileges of a member except voting at general meetings.
- 4.2.4 A Special Committee meeting shall be held preceding but no less than 14 days before any General Meeting to consider any outstanding applications for membership.
- 4.2.5 No new applications for membership are to be received once the Committee Meeting referred to in sub-clause 2.4 has commenced its meeting or not less than 14 calendar days should no special committee meeting be required.
- 4.3 The society may make available a certain number of junior memberships each year, to deserving persons who shall not be less than thirteen (13) years of age or more than eighteen (18) years of age.
- 4.4 Junior memberships shall have the same rights and privileges accorded to members of the society except that they shall not have the right to vote upon certain circumstances hereinafter defined in the constitution and subscriptions for junior membership shall be separately fixed in the bylaws of the society.
- 4.5 Children under 13 years of age may not become members, senior or junior. Notwithstanding, they are still eligible to attend as long as they are accompanied by a financial adult or an adult who has been granted a special membership. That member is responsible and accountable for the child whilst in the club. For convenience such children are referred to as Sponsored Juniors and are subject to Rule 10 except for clauses 5, 6 and 7.
- 4.6 Members whose subscriptions are three (3) calendar months in arrears shall not have the rights or privileges of membership.
- 4.6.1 Non-financial members who are more than four (4) months in arrears shall have their membership automatically terminated and no longer be members of the Society.
- 4.6.2 Members who are financial in accordance with Rule 5 Clause 1 shall be considered for the AGM scheduled in accordance with Rule 9 Clause 1.
- 4.7 The Society may Grant special membership to any person by waiving the subscription, or part thereof, for any period not exceeding one (1) year.
- 4.8 Honorary membership may be granted to any person, deserving of the privilege, or to maintain association with a person separated by distance. Honorary members shall not pay the annual subscription, nor shall they have any right to vote.

- 4.9 Life membership may be granted to any worthy person for extended service to the society, after a proposal in their favour, made at a general meeting has been received with acclamation. Life members shall have full rights and privileges, may hold office but may not be required to pay the annual subscription.
- 4.10 The committee has the power to terminate the membership of any person whom it decides that it is in the best interests of the society to do so.
- 4.11 The word "members", used descriptively, shall mean and be construed to mean, members of the society who are eighteen (18) years of age and financial but may generalise to include Life members, Junior members, ~~and~~ honorary members, ~~and~~ special members and sponsored juniors, in each case the provisions and spirit of this constitution shall determine the extent of that generality.

5. SUBSCRIPTIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP:

- 5.1 Subscriptions for membership shall fall due on the first day of July each year and shall be current until the thirtieth day of June the following year.
- 5.2 The subscriptions shall be determined annually by the committee and proposed as a bylaw of the society, at the annual general meeting.
- (a) Proposals to change subscriptions are to include the justification for doing so.
- (b) Proposals to change subscriptions are to be posted on the Society's Notice Board at least two weeks before the AGM
- 5.3 The definition of "subscription" applied to rule 5 means
- (a) subscription for membership Rule 4 Clause 1
- (b) subscription for Junior membership Rule 4 Clause 3
- (c) subscription for special membership Rule 4 Clause 6
- (d) Subscriptions to the amount stated in the bylaws of the society and confirmed by the minutes of the last annual General meeting (AGM).
- 5.4 Life members of the society are not subject to the provisions of Rule 5, Clause's 1, 2 and 3 but shall pay such admission fees, meeting fees and levies according to Rule 5 Clause 5 and the bylaws of the society unless excluded specifically by the term of their Life membership.
- 5.5 The Committee, shall determine such admission fees, meeting fees and levies, that may from time to time be necessary, for the proper management of the Society, provided that where such fees are regular, they shall be included in the Bylaws of the society and presented to each AGM as a proposition.
- (a) Proposals to change such admission fees, meeting fees and levies, are to include the justification for doing so.
- (b) Proposals to change such admission fees, meeting fees and levies are to be posted on the Society's Notice Board at least two weeks before the AGM
- 5.6 It is the responsibility of each and every member to ensure that they are financial.
- 5.7 Members on a payment plan shall have the privileges of membership while their payments meet the schedule of the payment plan.

6. MANAGEMENT OF THE SOCIETY:

- 6.1 Management of the Society is vested in the management committee of the society, referred to generally in this constitutions as the 'committee'
- 6.2 Election for members of the committee shall be held at the AGM from the financial members of the society, not including junior members.
- 6.3 The committee shall consist of at least four (4) members.
- 6.4 The committee shall have a maximum of ten (10) members. It consists of the Officers of the Society as defined in Rule 7, the Librarian if not an executive committee member as defined in Rule 7 Clause 5.3 and the balance being duly elected non-executive members as defined in Rule 7 Clause 5.2. A quorum shall be two less than the number on the committee or three whichever is the larger number.
- 6.5 The committee shall receive and accept nominations for membership in accordance with Rule 4 of this constitution.
- 6.6 The committee shall fix the number of junior memberships available each year, provided as far as it is possible, that the number of junior memberships does not exceed the number of members of the society as defined in Rule 4 clause 4.1 of this constitution.
- 6.7 The property of the society shall be vested in the management committee for the time being.
- 6.8 The committee shall fix the regular, general and social meetings of the society and direct the secretary to call the same in due time. No meeting of the Society shall be held without the authority of the committee.
- 6.9 The Committee shall have the power to co-opt or engage the services of any person for a limited time, for a particular task, such persons having no right for vote upon general committee business.
- 6.10 It is within the power of the president and the committee to make awards and prizes to any person deserving of merit save only that of life membership.
- 6.11 The Committee has the power to censure, reprimand and suspend or terminate the membership of any person who either deliberately or inadvertently contravenes this constitution and/or the bylaws of the society.
- 6.12 It is within the power of the committee to approve the expenditure, a sum upon a single account not exceeding the limitations made from time to time in the bylaws of the society.
- 6.13 Likewise, the president may similarly be empowered to approve a lesser amount subject to the bylaws of the society.
- 6.14 It is within the power of the committee to make, alter or delete any bylaw of the society, for the good management of the society, provided that nothing is done which contravenes the provisions and spirit of this constitution, and further, that the bylaws are always available to all members by posting upon the notice board, in the regular meeting place of the society, or other place of convenience.
- 6.15 The committee shall prepare a budget of expected income and expenses before each AGM for the subsequent financial year. This budget shall be presented as part of the treasurer's report to the AGM. It shall be for the information of the AGM and need not be voted on
- 6.16 The committee shall have the power to adjust membership subscriptions/payment method on application of a prospective member.

7. OFFICERS OF THE SOCIETY

- 7.1 The President
- 7.1.1 The president shall be elected by members at the AGM of the Society.
- 7.1.2 The president shall be a minimum of twenty-one (21) years of age at the time of election.
- 7.1.3 The president shall preside at all formal meetings of the society and shall be spokesman of the society on all proper public occasions.
- 7.1.4 The president shall have a deliberative but not a casting vote at all secret ballots of the society.
- 7.1.5 The president shall have a casting vote at any other ballots of the society
- 7.1.6 At all formal occasions, the president shall allow orderly debate to proceed and shall not pay any question to vote until after fair opportunity for rebuttal has been given.
- 7.2 The Vice President
- 7.2.1 The vice president may be elected by the members during the AGM of the society.
- 7.2.2 In the absence of the President from any formal meeting of the society, the Vice president shall assume the duties of the society president for that meeting.
- 7.2.3 In the event of the extended or permanent absence of the president the VP shall hold the office of the president until the next regular period of election or the president returns, whichever shall be sooner.
- 7.2.4 It shall not be mandatory upon the society to elect a Vice-President, in which case the secretary shall assume the duties of an interim.
- 7.3 The Secretary
- 7.3.1 The secretary shall be elected by the members at the AGM of the society.
- 7.3.2 The secretary shall keep minutes of the proceedings and transactions of the society, in a book set aside for that purpose. Is responsible for receiving and sending all correspondence, keeping copies of the same.
- 7.3.3 The Secretary shall receive all subscriptions and monies on behalf of the society, may issue receipts for the same, endorse with the stamp of the society and shall pay to the treasurer all monies when cash to hand is excessive.
- 7.3.4 The Secretary shall keep a record of the names and addressees of all members of the society.
- 7.3.5 The secretary shall call all meetings as directed by the President, the committee and shall prepare an agenda for said meetings.
- 7.3.6 The secretary shall call for nominations for the office of committee, in due time, and in said manner as described in the constitution. Shall post all nominations as received on notice board in the regular meeting place of society.
- 7.3.7 The secretary shall present all proper accounts for payment to the treasurer.
- 7.4 The Treasurer
- 7.4.1 The Treasurer shall be elected by the members of the society, at the AGM of the society.

- 7.4.2 The Treasurer shall receive subscriptions and monies from the secretary and pay the same into such banking account or accounts, held in the proper name of the society, at such bank or savings society, as the bylaws of the society shall from time to time decide, and shall act as a signatory to that account, or accounts with such others as may be necessary, as the bylaws of the society determines.
- 7.4.3 The treasurer shall pay such accounts that are properly presented to the treasurer and in accordance with the instructions of the management committee, and shall keep a record in a book set aside for that purpose, showing accounts monies received and disbursed by him and such book made available at each meeting and committee meeting of the society.
- 7.4.4 The treasurer shall prepare an annual income and expenditure account, a subscription account and a balance sheet, which shall be submitted after audit for the acceptance of the AGM of the society.
- 7.5 Committee Members.
- 7.5.1 Notwithstanding Rule 6 Clause 's 3 & 4, the basis for determining the size of the committee shall be as far as it is practical as one (1) committee member including executive officers for every (6) of the Society.
- 7.5.2 Non executive members shall be elected by members of the Society at the AGM of the society
- 7.5.3 The librarian may be elected or appointed by the society and shall be a member of the management committee, subject to re-election or re-appointment each year at the regular time of elections within the society. The librarian may, if regularly elected, hold office as an executive of the society concurrent but is bound by Rule 8 clause 5 concerning re-election to that executive committee position. The position of librarian shall be filled before the other offices of the committee
- 7.6 Casual Vacancies may be held over to the following AGM. The tenure of those elected to fill casual vacancies shall be that of the original incumbent of the position.

8. ELECTION OF OFFICERS OF MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

- 8.1 Nominations for the non-executive officers of the committee shall be made in writing and shall be signed by the proposer and a seconder.
- 8.2 It shall not be competent to elect any member without his/her written consent.
- 8.3 The election of officers of management committee, not including those of President and treasurer, may be made by show of hands or written ballot as the president decides.
- 8.4 The election of the president and Treasurer shall be by written ballot, taken separately. Single nominations for either position must withstand a ballot.
- 8.5 The Executive offices of the management committee, namely the President, Vice president, treasurer & secretary are open to all suitable members.
- 8.6 All nominations shall be in the hands of the secretary not later than the published closing date and time which shall not be later than fourteen (14) days prior to the AGM of the society.
- 8.7 All nominations shall be posted the notice board in the regular meeting place of the society, not later than the published closing date for acceptance of nominations and shall bear the endorsement of the secretary of the society.
- 8.8 The election of the president and treasurer of the society shall be by financial members only. Junior members shall have no right to vote upon the election of the committee members.

- 8.9 Nominations for the office (s) of committee members shall be called for in due time, as determined by Rule 8 clause's 6&7 of this constitution but members of the committee shall be fixed by the decision of the AGM.
- 8.10 The office of librarian shall be called for before the non-executive officer(s) of the Committee members.

9. MEETINGS OF THE SOCIETY

- 9.1 The Annual general Meeting (AGM) of the Society shall be held each year on the first day of July, or within fourteen (14) days of that date. The actual date of the meeting shall be published at least by posting on the notice board in the regular meeting place of the society, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting.
- 9.2 Committee meetings shall be held at least bi-monthly on odd numbered months of the year, on the fifteenth day of the month or within five (5) days of the fifteenth day of the month at a time and place convenient to all members of the committee.
- 9.3 Regular meetings of the society, and Special general meetings (SGM), shall be called as necessary in accordance with this constitution and the Bylaws of the society, and the direction of the President, or his substitute at the time to carry the aims of the Society and to the convenience of its members.
- (a) A quorum for the AGM shall be 50% of the total of the currently financial members as defined in Rule 4 clauses 1 and 11 and life members as defined in Rule 4 Clause 8.
- (b) A quorum for a Special General Meeting shall be 25% the total of the currently financial members as defined in Rule 4 clauses 1 and 11 and life members as defined in Rule 4 Clause 8.
- (c) In the event of a quorum not being reached by the advertised start time of the meeting the Chairman shall wait 30 minutes to allow late comers to arrive.
- (d) If a quorum is not achieved within 30 minutes of the advertised start time and date the meeting shall be postponed to a date not exceeding 30 days of the advertised start date of the meeting,. This clause takes precedence over Rule 9 Clause 1.
- 9.4 At all formal meetings of the Society, business shall be conducted through the president or his substitute in accordance with the Constitution and its By-laws and with the agenda of the meeting. No questions shall be put to vote until fair opportunity has been given for amendment or rebuttal and upon the ruling of the president or his substitute.
- 9.5 The President may appoint such tellers or other assistants to ensure the efficient conduct and control of the meeting(s).
- 9.6 In the event of the President, Vice President and Secretary being absent from a meeting, the meeting shall invite, by a show of hands, any properly qualified, financial member to assume the duties of chairman of the meeting. This chairman may then appoint a minutes secretary for the meeting.

10 DUTIES AND PRIVILEGES OF MEMBERS

- 10.1 All members shall maintain a neat and clean standard of dress, moderate in appearance.
- 10.2 All members of the society shall conduct themselves in an orderly manner, observing the usages of common courtesy, addressing each other by proper names and with moderate language so that their demeanour shall not bring the society into disrepute.
- 10.3 All members shall recognise the dignity of the society vested in the president, and shall pay respect to that dignity by addressing him as 'Mr. President', on all proper occasions.

- 10.4 All members shall recognise the dignity of the society vested in each and every member of the society, visitors and guests, and shall respect that dignity by addressing them singularly as 'mister' or mrs or miss or ms as appropriate and plurally as ladies and gentleman on all proper occasions.
- 10.5 Any member who has a grievance may petition the president for a hearing before the management committee. Upon receipt of such a petition the president shall direct the secretary to call a committee meeting within fourteen (14) days, at a convenient time to the member and committee.
- 10.6 If, after having been heard by the management committee, the member has not obtained satisfaction, he may petition the president to call a special general meeting to hear his complaint(s), provided that:
- (a) He his a financial member,
 - (b) His petition is supported by two (2) other members, one of whom shall satisfy the requirements of Rule 4. Clause1.
- Upon receipt of such a petition, properly presented the President shall direct the secretary to call a SGM for a convenient date not less than fourteen (14) and not more than thirty (30) days after receipt of the petition.
- 10.7 It shall be within the power of the SGM to consider if the nature of the complaint is frivolous or prejudicial to the dignity of the society and, if this be the case, may direct the management committee to act in accordance with the Rule 4 clause 9 or Rule 6 clause 11 of this constitution.
- 10.8 Each member may avail himself of all the facilities of the society, provided he is financial and not restricted or excluded from these facilities by the management committee in accordance with this constitution and the bylaws of the society.
- 10.9 No member shall use the name of the Society to procure, or attempt to procure goods or services from any source whatsoever, such right being reserved to the management committee, who may properly appoint any member to act upon it.

11 VOTING & PRESENTATION OF BUSINESS AT MEETINGS

- 11.1 Motions of which notice has been given in accordance with Rule 9 Clause 1 must be voted on during the AGM, unless withdrawn by the proposer. Motions raised without notice or during 'Other Business' need not be voted on. The President may decide whether or not to put such a motion to a vote of the meeting subject to the approval of his action by a majority (50% +1) of the members present.
- 11.2 The Agenda for the meeting shall be published at least by posting on the notice board in the regular meeting place of the society, not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting. The Agenda shall include notice of all motions, and including (if appropriate) supporting arguments, to be put to the meeting. The Agenda shall include the following items as a minimum:
- 11.2.1 Apologies
 - 11.2.2 Previous minutes
 - 11.2.3 Business arising from the previous minutes
 - 11.2.4 President's report
 - 11.2.5 Treasurer's Report
 - 11.2.6 Other reports
 - 11.2.7 Review of annual subscription in accordance with Rule 5 Clause 2
 - 11.2.8 Review of admission fees, meeting fees and levies, Rule 5. Clause 5
 - 11.2.9 Election of executive officers to fill positions due for re-election
 - 11.2.10 Election of committee members to fill positions due for re-election
 - 11.2.11 Business without notice

- 11.3 Voting upon any matter before a meeting of the society shall be carried out by any method, as the president shall direct, except where otherwise determined by this constitution or the by-laws of the society.
- 11.4 Except where otherwise determined by this constitution, a question shall be resolved by a majority of one (50%+1) of the members present
- 11.5 Secret written ballots shall be taken from the financial members present to elect the president and the Treasurer, even though one candidate only has been nominated for each office.
- 11.6 A secret written ballot must be undertaken to alter the constitution.
- 11.6.1 A change to the constitution must be approved by a majority (at least 50% +1) of all the currently financial members as defined in Rule 4 clauses 1 and life members as defined in Rule 4 Clause 9 &. of the Society
- 11.7 A secret ballot must be taken to dissolve the society.
- 11.8 Junior members and honorary members shall not vote upon any matter which deals with:
- (a) The dissolution of the society
 - (b) Alterations of this constitution
 - (c) Financial controls of the society
- 11.9 Junior and Honorary members are ineligible as candidates for any office of the management committee but may be co-opted or appointed in accordance with Rule 6 clause 9 of this constitution.
- 11.10 The President may abstain from casting a deliberative or casting vote upon any question, as he shall decide.
- 11.11 Notice of motion to:
- (a) Dissolve the society
 - (b) Alter the constitution
 - (c) Dissolve the management committee, before the regular time of election,
- Shall be given in writing not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the motion being moved and shall bear the signatures of such persons as the constitution and by-laws direct. The notice of motion shall be posted on the notice board in the regular meeting place of the society, together with the date and time of the meeting when it shall be moved.
- 11.12 The proposition 'That the question be put' shall not be in order unless fair opportunity for rebuttal and/or amendment has been given, neither shall the proposition 'that the next business be attended to' be in order until the business before the meeting, lapse without a proposition.
- 11.13 The propositions defined in Rule 11 clause 11, when ruled by the president to be in order, do not require a seconder, and shall be put to question forthwith.
- 11.14 Business, which has been attended to, shall not be raised again during the meeting, but may be properly introduced at the next regular or special meeting.
- 11.15 Any member who has business to put before the meeting shall unless otherwise directed by this constitution or its by-laws, petition the secretary to include that business in the agenda of the meeting, and this shall be done. Otherwise, it shall stand aside until the president shall call for the presentation of 'other business', which is not on the agenda.

12. DISSOLUTION OF THE SOCIETY

- 12.1 The society shall not be dissolved until after a secret written ballot in which at least 75% financial members of the society, as defined by Rule 4 clause 1 of this constitution concur.
- 12.2 The president shall have a deliberative but not a casting vote.
- 12.3 Any proposition to dissolve the society shall be made in accordance with Rule 11 clause 9, unless notice of motion is given at a regular, special or annual general meeting and is supported by two (2) financial members of the society.
- 12.4 Upon receipt of the a motion to dissolve, or notice of motion to dissolve, in proper form, all business of the society shall be suspended until the matter is properly resolved.
- 12.5 The president may rule that each member entitled to vote accept, or be sent by post a ballot paper, and mark the roll of members with the witness that a ballot paper has been given or sent to each member, further the president may rule that the ballot be conducted by post, the counting of which shall be carried out at a special general meeting called to resolve the question, and the opening and counting of the ballot shall be done in the meeting, by the president.
- 12.6 The president may rule that the books of the society be audited before the ballot and that it be done by person(s) independent of the society.
- 12.7 Upon decision to dissolve being properly agreed upon, the books of the society shall be audited, unless this has been carried out immediately prior to the ballot and all debts of the society shall be met from the funds of the society, or by sale of its assets.
- 12.8 All items loaned to the society shall be returned to the ~~lender~~ lender(s).
- 12.9 All members shall be informed in writing of the dissolution of the society and the method of disposal of property and funds.

13. CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION

- 13.1 Notice to change the constitution shall be given in accordance with Rule 11 Clause 11.
- 13.2 Details of changes to the Constitution are to be submitted to the Committee at least three months before the date of the General Meeting to consider the changes.
- 13.3 The Committee shall comment on the changes and make available to the members the suggested changes and the Committee's comments no later than one month before the date of the General Meeting to consider the changes.
- 13.4 The suggested changes and comment by the committee shall be made available to members by at least placing a copy of each on the Society's notice board in the Society's regular meeting place and having them on display up to and including the General Meeting to consider the changes.
- 13.5 Changes to the Constitution that have been rejected by a General Meeting may not be resubmitted for 12 months.

14. VISITORS

- 14.1 The Society welcomes and encourages members, their guests and visitors to its club rooms on meeting nights
- 14.2. In this Section the rules concerning guest and visitors are laid out so that all can know when our hospitality is being abused. In this section guest is used in the sense of those who are not members but have come along at the invitation of a member, this includes those participating in competitions. Visitor is used in the sense of those who have not been specifically invited along by a member but have decided to visit the Society. Except for those attending competitions, open to the public and activities such as open days no payment of door or such fees will be accepted from guests or visitors.
- 14.3 Guests are required to sign in on the attendance log in the visitor section; the details of their host are to be entered in the comments section. Unless barred from the Clubs facilities an individual who was, but is no longer a member, may be invited as a guest.
- 14.3.1 Guests are required to abide by the standard of behaviour required of Society members and the host is responsible for the behaviour and accountable for the actions of their guest(s). If the guest does not abide by the standard of behaviour required then their host, a Committee member, duty officer, or the person responsible for locking up at the end of the activity can direct them to leave.
- 14.3.2 A guest may not remain after their host or competition organiser, as appropriate, has left.
- 14.3.3 It is expected that guests are those who for one reason or another have little inclination to become regular attendees of the Society's gaming nights, consequently, during a calendar year an individual may attend as a guest no more than the number of times set by the Committee in the Society's bylaws.
- 14.4 Those gamers who are transient in the Adelaide metropolitan area are welcome to come along and either have a look, join in games that are being played or, if they are part of a visiting group, play a game. Gamers resident within the Greater Adelaide area or its environs are welcome to visit to see what the Society has to offer should they become members.
- 14.4.1 All visitors are restricted to a maximum of number of visits as set by the Committee in the Society's bylaws, in a twelve month period. Before or at the end of this number of visits it is expected the visitor will apply for membership in accordance with Rule 4 Clause 2.
- 14.4.2 If a visitor has attended for the number of visits in Rule 14 Clause 4.1 and has not applied for membership or their membership is not accepted then the visitor will not be admitted to the premises as a visitor during times of Society games and activities for a period of 12 months from their last visit or, if deemed appropriate by the committee, longer.